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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF GEORGIA
ATLANTA DIVISION

HORMOZDI LAW FIRM, LLC, a )
Georgia Limited Liability Company, on )
behalf of itself and all others similarly ) Case No.

situated,
CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT
Plaintiff,
JURY TRIAL DEMANDED
V.

RDAP LAW CONSULTANTS, LLC,

N N N N N N N N N

Defendant.

CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT

Plaintiff, HORMOZDI LAW FIRM, LLC, ("Plaintiff"), brings this action
against Defendant, RDAP LAW CONSULTANTS, LLC, (“Defendant”), on behalf
of itself and all others similarly situated, and complains and alleges upon personal
knowledge as to itself and its own acts and experiences, and, as to all other matters,
upon information and belief, including investigation conducted by its attorneys.

INTRODUCTION

1. This case challenges Defendant’s policy and practice of sending unsolicited
facsimiles.

2. The Telephone Consumer Protection Act (“TCPA”), 47 USC § 227, prohibits
a person or entity from faxing or having an agent fax advertisements without
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the recipient’s prior express invitation or permission. The TCPA provides a
private right of action and provides statutory damages of $500 per violation.

. Unsolicited faxes damage their recipients. A junk fax recipient loses the use
of its fax machine, paper, and ink toner. An unsolicited fax wastes the
recipient’s valuable time that would have been spent on something else. A
junk fax interrupts the recipient’s privacy. Unsolicited faxes prevent fax
machines from receiving authorized faxes, prevent their use for authorized
outgoing faxes, cause undue wear and tear on the recipients’ fax machines,
and require additional labor to attempt to discern the source and purpose of
the unsolicited message.

. On behalf of itself and all others similarly situated, Plaintiff brings this case
as a class action asserting claims against Defendant under the TCPA to
recover declaratory relief, statutory damages for violations of the TCPA, and
an injunction prohibiting Defendant from future TCPA violations.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

. This Court has subject matter jurisdiction under 28 U.S.C. § 1331 and 47
U.S.C. 8227.

. Venue is proper in the Northern District of Georgia because Defendant does
or transacts business within this District, and a material portion of the events

at issue occurred in this District.
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PARTIES

7. Plaintiff, Hormozdi Law Firm, LLC, is, and at all times mentioned herein,
was a Georgia limited liability company located in Norcross, Gwinnett
County, Georgia

8. Plaintiff is, and at all times mentioned herein, a “person” as defined by 47
U.S.C. § 153(10).

9. Defendant, RDAP Law Consultants, LLC, is a limited liability company that
specializes in supporting federal sentencing, post-conviction, and prison
consulting for criminal defendants throughout the United States. It has a
principal place of business in East Lansing, Michigan and is organized under
the laws of Ohio.

10.Defendant is, and at all times mentioned herein, a “person,” as defined by 47
U.S.C. § 153(10).

EACTS

11.0n or about May 2, 2017, Defendant transmitted by facsimile machine a one-
page unsolicited advertisement to Plaintiff. The fax advertises prison support
programs Defendant offers that may get Plaintiff’s clients early release. A
copy of this fax is attached hereto as Exhibit A.

12.Defendant created or made Exhibit A, which Defendant knew or should have

known is a good or service which Defendant intended to, and did in fact,
3
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distribute to Plaintiff and the other members of the class.

13.Exhibit A is part of Defendant’s work or operations to market Defendant’s
goods or services which were performed by Defendant and on behalf of
Defendant. Therefore, Exhibit A constitutes material furnished in connection
with Defendant’s work or operations.

14.Upon information and belief, Plaintiff has received multiple fax
advertisements from Defendant similar to Exhibit A.

15.Defendant did not have Plaintiff’s prior express invitation or permission to
send advertisements to Plaintiff’s fax machine.

16.Whiling receiving Defendant’s unsolicited faxes, Plaintiff and the class
members lost the use of their fax machine, paper, and ink toner. The
unsolicited faxes wasted Plaintiff’s and the class members’ valuable time that
would have been spent on something else. The unsolicited faxes interrupted
Plaintiff’s and the class members’ privacy. The unsolicited faxes prevented
Plaintiff’s and the class members’ fax machines from receiving authorized
faxes, prevented their use for authorized outgoing faxes, caused undue wear
and tear on their fax machines, and required additional labor to attempt to

discern the source and purpose of the unsolicited messages.
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CLASS ALLEGATIONS

17.Plaintiff incorporates the preceding paragraphs as though fully set forth
herein.

18. In accordance with FRCP 23, Plaintiff brings this action pursuant to the
Telephone Consumer Protection Act, 47 U.S.C. § 227, on behalf of the
following class of persons:

All persons who (1) on or after four years prior to the filing
of this action, (2) were sent telephone facsimile messages
of material advertising the commercial availability of any
property, goods, or services by or on behalf of Defendant,
(3) from whom Defendant did not obtain prior express
permission or invitation to send those faxes, and (4) with
whom Defendant did not have an established business
relationship.

19.Plaintiff reserves the right to modify or amend the definition of the proposed
Class before the Court determines whether certification is proper, as more
information is gleaned in discovery.

20.Excluded from the Class are Defendant, any parent, subsidiary, affiliate, or
controlled person of Defendant, as well as the officers, directors, agents,

servants, or employees

21. Numerosity [Fed R. Civ. P. 23(a)(1)]. The Members of the Class are so

numerous that joinder is impractical. Upon information and belief, Defendant
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has sent illegal fax advertisements to hundreds if not thousands of other
recipients.

22.Commonality [Fed. R. Civ. P. 23(a)(2)]. Common questions of law and fact

apply to the claims of all Class Members and include (but are not limited to)
the following:

a. Whether Defendant sent faxes promoting the commercial availability or
quality of property, goods, or services;

b. The manner and method Defendant used to compile or obtain the list(s)
of fax numbers to which it sent the fax attached as Exhibit A to
Plaintiff’s Class Action Complaint and other unsolicited fax
advertisements;

c. Whether Defendant faxed advertisements without first obtaining the
recipient’s express permission or invitation;

d. Whether Defendant’s advertisements contained the opt out notices
required by the law;

e. Whether Defendant sent fax advertisements knowingly or willfully;

f. Whether Defendant violated 47 U.S.C. § 227;

g. Whether Plaintiff and the other Class members are entitled to statutory
damages;

h. Whether the Court should award treble damages; and
6
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I. Whether Plaintiff and the other Class Members are entitled to
declaratory, injunctive, or other equitable relief.

23. Typicality [Fed. R. Civ. P. 23(a)(3)]. Plaintiff’s claims are typical of the

claims of all Class Members. Plaintiff received unsolicited fax advertisements
from Defendant during the Class Period. Plaintiff makes the same claims that
it makes for the Class Members and seeks the same relief that it seeks for the
Class Members. Defendant has acted in the same manner toward Plaintiff and
all Class Members.

24 .Fair and Adequate Representation [Fed. R. Civ. P. 23(a)(4)]. Plaintiff will

fairly and adequately represent and protect the interests of the Class. It is
interested in this matter, has no conflicts, and has retained experienced class
counsel to represent the Class.

25.Need for Consistent Standards and Practical Effect of Adjudication [Fed R.

Civ. P. 23(B)(1)]: Class certification is appropriate because the prosecution

of individual actions by class members would: a) create the risk of inconsistent
adjudications that could establish incompatible standards of conduct for
Defendant, and/or b) as a practical matter, adjudication of the Plaintiff's claims

will be dispositive of the interests of class members who are not parties.
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26.Common Conduct [Fed. R. Civ. P. 23(B)(2)]: Class certification is also

appropriate because Defendant has acted and refused to act in the same or
similar manner with respect to all class members thereby making injunctive
and declaratory relief appropriate. Plaintiff demands such relief as authorized
by 47 U.S.C. §227.

27.Predominance and Superiority [Fed. R. Civ. P. 23(B)(3)]: Common questions

of law and fact predominate and a class action is superior to other methods of
adjudication:

a. Proof of the claims of the Plaintiff will also prove the claims of the class
without the need for separate or individualized proceedings;

b. Evidence regarding defenses or any exceptions to liability that the
Defendants may assert and prove will come from Defendant’s records
and will not require individualized or separate inquiries or proceedings;

c. Defendant has acted and is continuing to act pursuant to common
policies or practices in the same or similar manner with respect to all
class members;

d. The amount likely to be recovered by individual class members does
not support protested individual litigation. A class action will permit a
large number of relatively small claims involving virtually identical

facts and legal issues to be resolved efficiently in one (1) proceeding
8
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based upon common proofs;

e. This case is inherently managed as a class action in that:

Vi.

Defendant identified persons or entities to receive the fax
transmissions and it is believed that Defendant’s computer and
business records will enable Plaintiff to readily identify class

members and establish liability and damages;

I. Liability and damages can be established for the Plaintiff and the

class with the same common proofs;

Statutory damages are provided for in the statute and are the
same for all class members and can be calculated in the same or
a similar manner;

A class action will result in an orderly and expeditious
administration of claims and it will foster economics of time,
effort, and expense;

A class action will contribute to uniformity of decisions
concerning Defendant’s practices; and

As a practical matter, the claims of the class are likely to go

unaddressed absent class certification.
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CLAIMS FOR RELIEF

28.Plaintiff hereby incorporates by reference each of the preceding paragraphs as
though fully set forth herein.

29. The TCPA provides strict liability for sending fax advertisements in a manner
that does not comply with the statute. Recipients of fax advertisements have
a private right of action to seek an injunction or damages for violations of the
TCPA and its implementing regulations. 47 U.S.C. § 227(b)(3).

30. The TCPA makes it unlawful to send any “unsolicited advertisement” via fax
unless certain conditions are present. 47 U.S.C. § 227(b)(1)(C). “Unsolicited
advertisement” is defined as “any material advertising the commercial
availability or quality of any property, goods, or services which is transmitted
to any person without that person’s prior express invitation or permission, in
writing or otherwise.” 47 U.S.C. § 227(a)(5).

31.Unsolicited faxes are illegal if the sender and recipient do not have an
“established business relationship.” 47 U.S.C. § 227(b)(1)(C)(i). “Established
business relationship” is defined as “a prior or existing relationship formed by
a voluntary two-way communication between a person or entity and a
business or residential subscriber with or without an exchange of
consideration, on the basis of an inquiry, application, purchase or transaction

by the business or residential subscriber regarding products or services offered
10



Case 1:17-cv-01687-SCJ Document 1 Filed 05/10/17 Page 11 of 15

by such person or entity, which relationship has not been previously
terminated by either party.” 47 U.S.C. § 227(a)(2); 47 C.F.R. 8 64.1200(f)(6).

32.Regardless of whether the sender and recipient have an established business
relationship, and regardless of whether the fax is unsolicited, a faxed
advertisement is illegal unless it includes an opt-out notice on its first page
that complies with the TCPA’s requirements. See 47 U.S.C. 8§
227(b)(1)(C)(iii); 47 C.F.R. 8§ 64.1200(a)(4)(iv). To comply with the law, an
opt-out notice must (1) inform the recipient that the recipient may opt out of
receiving future faxes by contacting the sender; (2) provide both a domestic
telephone number and a facsimile machine number—one of which must be
cost-free—that the recipient may contact to opt out of future faxes; and (3)
inform the recipient that the sender’s failure to comply with an opt-out request
within thirty days is a violation of law. See 47 U.S.C. 8 227(b)(2)(D); 47 CFR
§ 64.1200(a)(4)(iii).

33.Defendant faxed unsolicited advertisements to Plaintiff in violation of 47
U.S.C. 8§ 227(b)(1)(C).

34.Defendant knew or should have known (a) that Plaintiff had not given express
invitation or permission for Defendant to fax advertisements about its

products or services; and (b) that Exhibit A is an advertisement.
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35.Defendant’s actions caused actual damage to Plaintiff and the Class Members.
Defendant’s junk faxes caused Plaintiff and the Class Members to lose paper,
toner, and ink consumed in the printing of Defendant’s faxes through
Plaintiff’s and the Class Members’ fax machines. Defendant’s faxes cost
Plaintiff and the Class Members time that otherwise would have been spent
on Plaintiff’s and the Class Members’ business activities.

36.In addition to statutory damages (and the trebling thereof), Plaintiff and the
Class are entitled to declaratory and injunctive relief under the TCPA.

REQUEST FORRELIEF

WHEREFORE Plaintiff, individually and on behalf of all others
similarly situated, respectfully requests that this Court:

a. Determine that this action may be maintained as a class action
under Rule 23 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure;

b. Declare Defendant’s conduct to be unlawful under the TCPA;

c. Award $500 in statutory damages under the TCPA for each
violation, and if the Court determines the violations were
knowing or willful then treble those damages;

d. Enjoin Defendant from additional violations;

e. Award Plaintiff and the Class their attorney’s fees and costs;

f.  Grant such other legal and equitable relief as the Court may deem
12
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appropriate.

JURY DEMAND

Plaintiff and the Members of the Class hereby request a trial by jury.

DATED: May 10, 2017 RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED,

By:/s/ Charles M. Clapp

Charles M. Clapp

GA Bar No. 101089

5 Concourse Parkway NE
Suite 3000

Atlanta, Georgia 30328
Tel: 404.585.0040

Fax: 404.393.8893
charles@lawcmc.com
Attorney for Plaintiff

13
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EXHIBIT A

14
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RDAP Law Consultants, LLC.
919 East Grand River Ave

Cast Lansing, MI 48823

Ph: 860-543-0250 Fax: 866-543.0250

p-1

To: Shircen Hormozdi, Attorney to be Noticed
Re: Thrahim Barrie — Consulting on BOP Early Release Programs

Dear Shireen Hormozdi,

We are obligated to contact yvou sinee vou are Hsted by the Court as the “Attorney to
be Noticed™ for Ibrahim Barrie. Note, we are NOY a law firm. Rather, we specialize n
prison support and would like to contact your client abowt programs that may get them
garly release.

We have a free course called “Prison Survival 1017 that can help. At a minimum,
we can afso give them the peace of mind on whether or not they mect BOF gaidelines
for carly release such as RDAP, Second Chanee Act, and Halfway House. 1{ not, we'll
fet them know what it would cost for them {o become eligible. We work on
contingency and so there is no financial risk to you or your client.

RIDAP can get vour client the following sentence reduction (even for non-Drag
offenses):

11 the sentence is: Your client ¢can get:

30 Months or Less 6 Months Sentence Reduction
31 -36 Months 9 Months Sentence Reduction
37 or more Months 12 Months Sentence Reduction

May we contact your client before it's too late, or better vet, could you please
recommend and forward our information to vour client? 1 know they would
appreciate it

Respectfudly,

Sam Copenhaver

sam Copenhaver

Managing Partner

Toll Free: (866} 543-0250

[Hrect: (216) 404-2405
seaspenhaver R DAPL awConsublants.com
htteewww, REAPLawConsultants com

p—

PS5, Please send me an email if you do not want us to contact you in the future,

"The Sentence Reduction Experis”
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VI. NATURE OF SUIT (PLACE AN “X™ IN ONE BOX ONLY)

CONTRACT - "0" MONTHS DISCOVERY TRACK

CIVIL RIGHTS - "4" MONTHS DISCOVERY TRACK

SOCIAL SECURITY - "0" MONTHS DISCOVERY

‘] 150 RECOVERY OF OVERPAYMENT &
ENFORCEMENT OF JUDGMENT

D 152 RECOVERY OF DEFAULTED STUDENT
LOANS (Excl Veterans)

D 153 RECOVERY OF OVERPAYMENT OF
VETERAN'S BENEFITS

CONTRACT - "4" MONTHS DISCOVERY TRACK
110 INSURANCE
120 MARINE
130 MILLER ACT
140 NEGOTIABLE INSTRUMENT

151 MEDICARE ACT
16 STOCKHOLDERS' SUITS

190 OTHER CONTRACT
195 CONTRACT PRODUCT LIABILITY
196 FRANCHISE

REAL PROPERTY - "4" MONTHS DISCOVERY
TRACK

210 LAND CONDEMNATION
220 FORECLOSURE
230 RENT LEASE & EJECTMENT

240 TORTS TO LAND
245 TORT PRODUCT LIABILITY
290 ALL OTHER REAL PROPERTY

TORTS - PERSONAL INJURY - "4" MONTHS
DISCOVERY TRACK

310 AIRPLANE

315 AIRPLANE PRODUCT LIABILITY

320 ASSAULT. LIBEL & SLANDER

330 FEDERAL EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

E}J(l MARINE
E 345 MARINE PRODUCT LIABILITY

350 MOTOR VEHICLE

355 MOTOR VEHICLE PRODUCT LIABILITY

360 OTHER PERSONAL INJURY

362 PERSONAL INJURY - MEDICAL

MALPRACTICE

3(»\ PERSONAL INJURY - PRODUCT LIABILITY

3(;7 PERSONAL {NJURY - HEALTH CARE
PHARMACEUTICAL PRODLU CT LIABILITY

D 368 ASBESTQS PERSONAL INJURY PRODUCT

LIABILITY

TORTS - PERSONAL PROPERTY - "4" MONTHS
DISCOVERY TRACK
370 OTHER FRAUD
371 TRUTH IN LENDING
B 380 OTHER PERSON AL PROPERTY DAMAGE

385 PROPERTY DAMAGE PRODUCT LIABILITY

BANKRUPTCY - "0" MONTHS DISCOVERY TRACK

422 APPEAL 28 USCT 158
423 WITHDRAWAL 28 USC 157

440 OTHER CIVIL RIGHTS

441 VOTING

442 EMPLOYMENT

443 HOUSING! ACCOMMODATIONS

445 AMERICANS with DISABILITIES - Employ ment
446 AMERICANS with DISABILITIES - Other

448 EDUCATION

IMMIGRATION - "0" MONTHS DISCOVERY TRACK
E 462 NATURALIZATION APPLICATION

465 OTHER IMMIGRATION ACTIONS

PRISONER PETITIONS - "0" MONTHS DISCOVERY
TRACK
463 HABEAS CORPUS- Alien Detainee
510 MOTIONS TO VACATE SENTENCE
S30 HABEAS CORPUS
535 HABEAS CORPUS DEATH PENALTY
540 MANDAMUS & OTHER
550 CIVIL RIGHTS - Filed Pro se
555 PRISON CONDITION{S) - Filed Pro se
560 CIVIL DETAINEE: CONDITIONS OF
CONFINEMENT

PRISONER PETITIONS - "4" MONTHS DISCOVERY
TRACK

| I 550 CIVIL RIGHTS - Filed by Counsel

E] 555 PRISON CONDITION(S} - Filed by Counsel

FORFEITURE/PENALTY - "4" MONTHS DISCOVERY

TRACK
D 625 DRUG RELATED SE1ZURE OF PROPERTY
21 USC 88)
] ov0 OTHER

LABOR - "4" MONTHS DISCOVERY TRACK
710 FAIR LABOR STANDARDS ACT
720 LABOR/MGMT RELATIONS
740 RAILWAY LABOR ACT
751 FAMILY and MEDICAL LEAVE ACT
E 790 OTHER LABOR LITIGATION

791 EMPL. RET INC SECURITY ACT

PROPERTY RIGHTS - "4" MONTHS DISCOVERY
TRACK

820 COPYRIGHTS

840 TRADEMARK
PROPERTY RIGHTS - "8" MONTHS DISCOVERY
TRACK

I I 830 PATENT

TRA

179

861 HIA (13950
862 BLACK LUNG {923)
863 DIWC (405(g)
863 DIWW (405(g))
8t SSID TITLE XV
E 865 RSH (AU5(g))

FEDERAL TAX SUITS - "4" MONTHS DISCOVERY
TRACK

870 TAXES (US Plaintff or Defendant)
E 871 IRS - THIRD PARTY 26 USC 7609

OTHER STATUTES - "4" MONTHS DISCOVERY
TRACK

375 FALSE CLAIMS ACT

376 Qui Tam 31 USC 372%a)

400 STATE REAPPORTIONMENT

430 BANKS AND BANKING

450 COMMERCE/ICC RATES ETC

460 DEPORTATION

470 RACKETEER INFLUENCED AND CORRUPT
ORGANIZATIONS

480 CONSUMER CREDIT

490 CABLE'SATELLITETV

890 OTHER STATUTORY ACTIONS

891 AGRICULTURAL ACTS

893 ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS

895 FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ACT

899 ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEDURES ACT
REVIEW OR APPEAL OF AGENCY DECISION

D 950 CONSTITUTIONALITY OF STATE STATUTES

OTHER STATUTES - "8" MONTHS DISCOVERY

TRACK
410 ANTITRUST

E 850 SECURITIES  COMMODITIES EXCHANGE

OTHER STATUTES - 0" MONTHS DISCOVERY

TRACK
896 ARBITRATION

(Confirm # Vacate Order / Modilv)

* PLEASE NOTE DISCOVERY
TRACK FOR EACH CASE TYPE.
SEE LOCAL RULE 26.3

VII. REQUESTED IN COMPLAINT:

CHECK IF CLASS ACTION UNDER F.R.Civ.P. 23

DEMAND §

URY DEMAND YES D NO (CHECK YES ONLY IF DEMANDED IN COMPLAINT)

VIII. RELATED/REFILED CASE(S) IF ANY

JUDGE

DOCKET NO.

CIVIL CASES ARE DEEMED RELATED IF THE PENDING CASE INVOLVES:

1. PROPERTY INCLUDED IN AN EARLIER NUMBERED PENDING SUIT.
[J2. SAME ISSUE OF FACT OR ARISES OUT OF THE SAME EVENT OR TRANSACTION INCLUDED IN AN EARLIER NUMBERED PENDING SUIT.
[33. VALIDITY OR INFRINGEMENT OF THE SAME PATENT, COPY RIGHT OR TRADEMARK INCLUDED IN AN EARLIER NUMBERED PENDING SUIT.
[J 4. APPEALS ARISING OUT OF THE SAME BANKRUPTCY CASE AND ANY CASE RELATED THERETO WHICH HAVE BEEN DECIDED BY THE SAME

BANKRUPTCY JUDGE.

5. REPETITIVE CASES FILED BY PRO SE LITIGANTS.
CJ6. COMPANION OR RELATED CASE TO CASE(S) BEING SIMULTANEOUSLY FILED (INCLUDE ABBREVIATED STYLE OF OTHER CASE(S)):

[CJ7. EITHER SAME OR ALL OF THE PARTIES AND ISSUES IN THIS CASE WERE PREVIOUSLY INVOLVED IN CASE NO.
DISMISSED. This case 13 1S 1S NOT (check one box) SUBSTANTIALLY THE SAME CASE.

(CHECK APPROPRIATE BOX)

» WHICH WAS
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